1949

Pete Moleton v. Union Pacific Railroad Company and Pacific Fruit Express Company : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

In this brief we shall designate the parties as they appear in the trial court.

All italics appearing in the brief are added.

The figures in parentheses refer to the pages of the record.

The defendant, Union Pacific Railroad Company, will be referred to herein as the railroad company and the defendant, Pacific Fruit Express Company, will be referred to as the express company.

This is an appeal by plaintiff from a judgment (R. 66), entered in favor of the defendants, and each of them, and against the plaintiff "No Cause for Action." This judgment was entered upon the court granting the defendants' motion for nonsuit and for the dismissal of plaintiff's complaint, which motions were made after the plaintiff had rested (R. 267-277). This action was brought by plaintiff to recover the sum of \$100,000.00 for permanent injuries received by plaintiff while working in the yards of the defendant, Union Pacific Railroad Company, at Laramie, Wyoming on the 22nd day of November, 1945.

The complaint in this case was divided into three causes of action. Each cause of action set forth a separate and distinct theory upon which plaintiff claimed that he could recover for the permanent injuries which he had suffered (R. 1-18).

The first cause of action is founded upon the Federal Employers' Liability Act and the plaintiff therein alleges that the two defendants are common carriers by railroad in interstate commerce and that plaintiff was employed by them in such commerce.

The second cause of action is against the express company alone. This cause of action is divided into two counts. Plaintiff alleged in each count that he was em-

ployed by said express company. Under the first count the plaintiff alleges that the defendant is engaged in operating a railroad within the State of Wyoming as a common enterprise with the Union Pacific Railroad Company. Plaintiff under this count relies upon the statutes of the State of Wyoming which applies to railroad companies operated within the State of Wyoming (R. 9-11). This act is very similar to the Federal Employers' Liability Act.

In answer to this first count of the second cause of action the defendants deny that the express company operates a railroad within the State of Wyoming and hence does not come within the said statutes (R. 30-31).

The second count of the second cause of action is based upon the theory that the express company had failed to comply with the statutes of the state of Wyoming requiring the contribution by employers to the Industrial Accident Fund. Under the statutes of Wyoming such failure permits the employees of such employer to maintain their common law actions for injuries (R. 11-12).

In answer to this second count the defendants denied that the express company was subject to the Workman's Compensation Act of Wyoming, relying upon Section 72-105 of the Wyoming Compiled Statutes 1945, wherein it is provided that the Wyoming Compensation laws do not apply to businesses or employment which, according to law, are engaged in interstate commerce (R. 31, 47-49).

The third cause of action is against the railroad company and is based upon the theory that the relationship of employer and employee does not exist between the plaintiff and the railroad company and that plaintiff suffered his injuries by reason of the negligence of the railroad company (R. 13-16).

The negligence set forth in the various causes of action contained in the complaint are almost identical. Under the first cause of action plaintiff alleges that he was employed by the defendants as an iceman and in the performance of his duties in the wintertime was required to descend into bunkers on refrigerator cars to regulate burning heaters which generated carbon monoxide gas. He further alleges that this gas accumulated and was known to accumulate by defendants in these bunkers, making it extremely hazardous to him in the performance of his duties. He alleges that they failed to use reasonable care to furnish him a reasonably safe place to work in that this condition existed in the bunkers, and that the defendants neglected to provide any means of removing and discharging the carbon monoxide gas. Plaintiff further contends that the defendants were negligent in not providing any methods or means whereby plaintiff could be saved or rescued by the peril created by the presence of said gas, and the defendants failed to provide a sufficient crew to assist in the performance of these hazardous duties. Plaintiff further relied upon the doctrine of *res ipsa loquitur*.

These grounds of negligence are realleged in the second cause of action.

In the third cause of action plaintiff alleges that the railroad, knowing that carbon monoxide gas had accumulated in the refrigerator cars and knowing of its dangerous characteristics, negligently instructed plaintiff to adjust the heaters therein without help or assistance and without providing means whereby plaintiff could be saved or rescued from said gas and without warning plaintiff of the presence of said gas.

It was further alleged that the doctrine of *res ipsa loquitur* applied and that the defendant, knowing of the presence of the carbon monoxide gas in the bunkers and that plaintiff would be unable to discover its presence, the railroad company negligently neglected to give plaintiff warning of the existence of the said gas and the hazard thereby created, and the railroad company neglected to ventilate said car or provide means for the removal of said gas (R. 14-16).

The defendants denied all of the acts of negligence and in their answer alleged as affirmative defenses contributory negligence, assumption of risk and the fellow servant doctrine.

We have set out the pleadings to inform the court of the various issues which were involved before the trial court. However, on this appeal we are only interested in the first cause of action. We have set forth the allegations of the second and third causes of action so that the court may be informed of the position taken by the parties with respect to these two causes of action. It is to be noted that the defendants contend that the plain-

tiff is entitled to no form of compensation for the injuries which he has received. By their position in this case they reflect the extent to which they claim they have insulated themselves against liability for injuries to employees working on trains in interstate commerce.

We feel that our position on the first cause of action is well taken and that it is unnecessary to belabor the points raised in the second and third causes of action on this appeal.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

In setting out the statement of facts, we shall divide it into four classifications, to wit: (a) The Laramie Yards; (b) The conduct of business in those yards; (c) The plaintiff's employment; (d) The event of plaintiff's injuries. The trial court in granting the motions for nonsuit did not specify the grounds upon which they were granted. Although the record does not show it, arguments and discussion on the motions were devoted almost entirely to whether or not the Federal Employers' Liability Act was applicable to this case.

(a) THE LARAMIE YARDS

The Laramie Yards, in which plaintiff was injured on November 22, 1945, are approximately two miles long and two blocks wide. The railroad company owns all of the tracks in this yard and is the only railroad that transports trains or cars either into or out of these yards

(R. 212, 213). These trains contain cars from many different railroads (R. 213).

Laramie is a terminal and all engines are changed in these yards, that is, when a train comes into the yard the engine is disconnected from the train and replaced by a fresh engine (R. 235). When these trains arrive there is generally quite a bit of work to do on them and in some instances they are completely broken up and remade before they proceed on their journey (R. 234).

The yard at Laramie is also a regular inspection point (R. 221) and cars containing perishable produce and commodities are serviced by icing and regulating heaters and ventilators (R. 214). This perishable freight consists of such items as fresh meat, sweet potatoes, spuds, beer, wines and grapefruit (R. 213).

(b) THE CONDUCT OF BUSINESS IN THOSE YARDS

A Yard Office is maintained in these Laramie Yards by the railroad company and into which comes all information concerning trains coming into the yard. This information is made available to all persons who may have work to do on the train so that they may know what work must be done before the train proceeds on its journey. This work consists of switching operations (R. 235) and also the inspection and regulation of heaters on refrigerator cars (R. 214).

The information concerning a train is received at the yard office about an hour before the train arrives in order that preparations may be made for the work

to be done and the train may proceed on its journey without undue delay (R. 230).

The procedure by which this information is forwarded to the yard office was described in the testimony. Trains proceeding toward the Laramie Yards would be in charge of the conductor who would have the waybills on the various cars and freight contained therein. From these waybills he would make up a switch list (R. 230). A copy of the switch list of the train involved in this case was introduced in evidence as defendant's Exhibit "5". A perusal of the switch list will show the type of information accumulated by the conductor in making up this list. The number of each car and the company owning it was listed, the class of freight, the contents of each car and its destination was also placed on this list. The waybill instructions were given and particularly instructions were given concerning the perishable freight. It being wintertime, when the train involved in this case approached Laramie the directions for this perishable freight concerned the temperature at which these cars must be kept to prevent freezing of the freight contained therein.

This switch list, after its preparation, is dropped off by the conductor at some telegraph station along the line. The dispatcher at the station then forwards this information, either by telegraph or telephone, to the yard office at Laramie. In the yard office is made up a consist from the information so obtained from the conductor. Enough copies of this are made for all persons who may have work to do on the train. The con-

sists are then hung on a tab in the office to be picked up by the various persons concerned with getting the train in readiness for its journey. All of the persons who have anything to do with the making up and forwarding of this information are persons in the general employ of the railroad company (R. 230, 231).

In the yard office the railroad company employs a yardmaster. From the information, forwarded to the yard office, he determines how he is going to make up and break up the train. He in turn gives this information to the yardmen and to the switchmen (R. 230, 231).

The express company has a couple of desks in the yard office and persons in the general employ of the express company in the yard office obtain a copy of these consists just as does the railroad company yardmaster (R. 231). The parties stipulated that a copy of Exhibit "5" was furnished by the railroad company to the express company yard clerk in the yards at Laramie on the occasion of the arrival of the train involved in this case. This exhibit was then furnished to the persons working in the yard under the general employ of the express company in order that they could perform their work on the train (R. 233).

The yardmaster would determine from the information he received where the trains coming into Laramie would be stopped and on what tracks and he in turn would inform the express company general employees what tracks were clear and on what tracks he intended

to put the trains (R. 234). The yardmaster would leave a list similar to Exhibit "5" on the caboose for the men on the switch engine working at the rear end of the train so that these men would know what work was to be done on that end of the train (R. 234). It was the yardmaster's responsibility to carry out the necessary things which were required by the information contained on the switch list. It was also the responsibility of the express company to take care of the work to be done on the refrigerator cars as disclosed by the information contained on this list (R. 245).

The foreman of the express company receives his information as to what should be done on the cars over the phone from the yard office. The foreman by those directions is told at what temperature the heaters are to be lighted or the temperature at which the heaters are to be extinguished (R. 215, 220, 221). The foreman has nothing to do with where the trains are placed in the yard and has nothing to do with the time that these trains come into or leave the yards (R. 215).

These refrigerator cars are owned by various companies, including the Pacific Fruit Express, the Swift Company, the Armour Company, the Rath, and the Canadian Pacific (R. 221). The general employees of the express company perform the necessary work on all of these refrigerator cars in the railroad company's trains regardless of what company owns them. It should be noted that the car from which plaintiff fell and was injured was not a car owned by the Pacific Fruit Express (R. 126, 127).

The work of the plaintiff and others in the general employ of the express company was gone into much more in detail than the work performed by the general employees of the railroad company. This was natural because plaintiff was injured while in the performance of his duties in regulating the heaters on the refrigerator cars.

It appeared from the evidence that when the foreman obtained the necessary information he would then direct plaintiff and other employees of the express company what was to be done on the refrigerator cars and gave them the numbers of the cars on which this work was to be done. He also informed them of the track on which the train was to be placed and the time of its arrival.

A rule had been promulgated and was posted in the yards by the express company. The so-called "Safety First Rules" were introduced in evidence as defendant's Exhibit "4". Rule 19 d. provided:

"When inspecting cars or lighting heaters at regular inspection points, not less than two employees must work together for each other's protection."

This rule, requiring two employees to work together in the adjusting of heaters, was usually followed in the yards (R. 218).

It was stipulated by the parties that the express company was a Utah corporation, organized in 1906

and that with the exception of a relatively small number of shares the stock of the express company was owned in equal amounts by the defendants Union Pacific Railroad Company and the Southern Pacific Company. It was further stipulated that no members of the Board of Directors of either the Southern Pacific Company or the Union Pacific Railroad Company were members of the Board of Directors of the express company.

It was also stipulated that the express company performs the same or similar services for at least four railroads, to-wit: The Southern Pacific, The Union Pacific, The Western Pacific and the Mexican railroad (R. 266-267). However, it was also stipulated that this was not true in the yards of the railroad company located in Laramie, Wyoming (R. 267). The evidence conclusively establishes that the only services rendered by the express company nominal employees was to the defendant, Union Pacific Railroad Company.

(c) THE PLAINTIFF'S EMPLOYMENT

At the time of receiving his injuries plaintiff was in the general employment of the express company (R. 141). He had worked for them since 1925 (R. 72). He was not on the payroll of the railroad company and he received his check from the express company. If there had been occasion to fire him it would have been done by the express company (R. 141, 142).

The foreman of the express company told him what work to do (R. 143). In performing the work on

the heater cars the men on the job determined whether or not charcoal was to be placed therein and how much (R. 146). On occasions plaintiff would determine whether the bunker walls should be adjusted (R. 148). Plaintiff also determined how long he would leave a plug out before he climbed into the bunker (R. 149).

It appears that the directions given plaintiff were from information and instructions given to the express company by the railroad company and obtained by that company from the waybills on the various cars and freight in the train. This information was accumulated by the railroad company's conductor and placed on a switch list which eventually came into the hands of all persons who worked on the train, whether nominally employed by the express company or the railroad company.

(d) THE EVENT OF PLAINTIFF'S INJURIES

Plaintiff was injured on the 22nd day of November, 1945, at which time he was 53 years of age. At that time he had worked for the Pacific Fruit Express for more than twenty years; during this time his duties had been to take care of the inspection and handling of refrigerator cars. In the summertime he iced these refrigerator cars and in the wintertime he took care of the heaters (R. 73, 74).

Pictures of one of these refrigerator cars was introduced in evidence as defendants' Exhibits "1" and "3". These cars are about 15 or 16 feet from the top of the rail to the top of the car (R. 75); from the floor

to the ceiling is from 8 to 10 feet; the car is about 10 feet wide (R. 75); the cars have an ice bunker in each end. These bunkers are about 3 feet to 3½ feet wide. The bottom of these bunkers, or the floor, is made of tin or steel. The bunkers are separated from the rest of the cars by either wood or steel partitions (R. 78). To get into the bunkers the men climb a ladder on the side of the car to the top of the car and open the door or plug of the bunker. The men then climb down the ladder on the inside of the bunker to the floor (R. 81).

In the summertime the cars were brought to the icing docks and ice and salt placed in the bunkers (R. 82). In the winter months plaintiff's work consisted of regulating the heaters by either putting charcoal in them or by shutting them off, as the weather required (R. 90). On occasions it was necessary to place ice in cars which contained meat (R. 91). Plaintiff, in the performance of his duties, worked on refrigerator cars owned by various companies including the Fruit Growers' Express and the American Refrigerator Company (R. 92). During the wintertime the plaintiff at all times worked with two men and sometimes with three (R. 92). His foreman would tell him on which track the train was located.

In describing the way the work was usually done the plaintiff testified that at least two men were supposed to perform the duties of regulating the heaters in the bunkers (R. 96). After climbing to the top of the car one of the plugs is opened by the use of a pick handle; after the plug is open one of the men descends into the

bunker and either shuts off the heater or puts more charcoal into it; the other man goes on to the next bunker and performs the same duties. Plaintiff testified that sometimes he noticed that there was gas in the bunkers. He determined the presence of gas by the fact that he would get dizzy, not while he was down in the bunker, but as soon as he got out into the fresh air (R. 93-96).

On the day that the plaintiff was injured he arrived at work at 8:00 o'clock in the morning. At that time there were four men working, plaintiff, the foreman and two other men. On this particular day, Riley was the foreman. In the testimony of the plaintiff, this man is referred to as Rowley (R. 97). During the morning the plaintiff did not work on any of the refrigerator cars, but as he remembered it, he did some cleaning up in the yards. Shortly before noon a westbound train consisting of 50 or 60 cars pulled into the yards at Laramie. It pulled in on Track No. 10 (R. 99, 100). Just before the train arrived plaintiff and the foreman were the only men on duty, the other two men having gone to dinner at about 11:30. The foreman told plaintiff to work on this train and that there were three reefers, which is the name that the men give to these refrigerator cars. He was told that there were three heaters which he was to regulate by shutting them off (R. 101, 102, 150) and he was given the numbers of the cars (R. 104). Because plaintiff would have to walk about a half a mile to the point where he was to perform his duties, he started for Track No. 10 before the train arrived (R. 101, 103). The reefers

on which plaintiff was to work were at the head end of the train, which would be the west end. Plaintiff started walking along the track toward the west (R. 104) and the foreman remained in the shanty (R. 152, 153). Plaintiff went alone to regulate these heaters (R. 105).

When he arrived at the first car upon which he was to work he climbed up on top of that car by means of the south ladder (R. 132) and opened the plug. He then proceeded to the other two cars opening the plug on each. In performing this work he walked along the top of the cars and did not dismount. He opened all of the plugs before he entered the bunkers in order to let the carbon monoxide gas out which had been generated by the burning heaters (R. 193). Plaintiff estimated that it took him about four minutes to open these plugs and return to the first car on which he had opened the plug (R. 199).

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