1949

# Pete Moleton v. Union Pacific Railroad Company and Pacific Fruit Express Company : Brief of Respondents

Utah Supreme Court

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

## ARGUMENT

### POINT NO. I

By Point No. I of his argument plaintiff contends that the plaintiff was an employe of the defendant railroad company, in the following language: "The plaintiff, within the meaning of the F. E. L. A., was employed by the defendant, Union Pacific Railroad Company, which admittedly

was engaged as a common carrier by railroad in interstate commerce." As stated by the plaintiff, we admit that the defendant railroad company was engaged in interstate commerce as a common carrier by railroad. We deny that plaintiff was employed by the railroad company within the meaning of the F. E. L. A. Title 45, Section 51, United States Code Annotated, provides, in so far as is material, as follows:

"Every common carrier by railroad while engaging in commerce between any of the several states \* \* \* shall be liable in damages to any person suffering injury *while he is employed by such carrier* in such commerce \* \* \* for such injury \* \* \* resulting in whole or in part from the negligence of any of the officers, agents or employees of such carrier \* \* \*.

"*Any employee of a carrier*, any part of whose duties as such employee shall be the furtherance of interstate or foreign commerce; or shall, in any way directly or closely and substantially, affect such commerce as above set forth shall, for the purposes of this chapter, be considered as being employed by such carrier in such commerce and shall be considered as entitled to the benefits of this chapter."

The words chosen by Congress to define the industrial relationship which invokes the application of the Federal Employers' Liability Act are, "while he is employed by such carrier", and the further words, "any employee of a carrier." Since the enactment of this statute the courts have uniformly refused to give any artificial meaning to the language above referred to and have insisted that the words "employee" and "employed" are used in their common and usual sense.

*Robinson v. Baltimore & Ohio Railroad Co.*, 237 U. S. 84, 35 Sup. Ct. 491, 59 L. Ed. 849. In this case suit was brought by a pullman porter against the Railroad Company operating the train in which the pullman car where the plaintiff worked was being transported. The Supreme Court of the United States stated this principle in the following language:

“We are of the opinion that Congress used the words ‘employee’ and ‘employed’ in the statute in their natural sense and intended to describe the conventional relation of employer and employee.”

See also

*Hull v. Philadelphia & Reading Ry. Co.*, 252 U. S. 475, 40 Sup. Ct. 358, 64 L. Ed. 670;

*Stevenson v. Lake Terminal Railroad Co.*, 42 Fed. (2) 357;

*Reynolds v. Addison Miller Company, et al.*, 255 P. 110.

Plaintiff is therefore foreclosed from any support for his argument upon the theory that the words “employee” or “employed” have any special significance as used in the Federal Employers’ Liability Act. His relationship to the Union Pacific Railroad Company must be determined on familiar principles. This factor alone should be conclusive as to the question of the relationship between the plaintiff and the Union Pacific Railroad Company in view of the evidence.

The facts as shown by the evidence and as admitted by plaintiff’s brief may be summarized as follows:

- (1) Moleton was originally hired by the Pacific Fruit Express Company; (R. 72)

- (2) He worked for that same company approximately twenty years; (R. 72)
- (3) His wages were exclusively paid by that company; (R. 142)
- (4) He worked under the direct supervision of employes of that company with no supervision by any employe of the Union Pacific Railroad Company; (R. 141, 142, 144, 226, 227)
- (5) His rate of pay was determined by that company; (R. 142)
- (6) His methods of performing the work were governed by rules of that company, as for example, the safety rules mentioned in the evidence; (Ex. 4)
- (7) He acquired seniority rights on his job with Pacific Fruit Express Company; (R. 124)
- (8) Pacific Fruit Express Company is an independent business engaged in performing services for various railroad carriers, which has been in existence since the year 1906; (R. 254, 255, 256)
- (9) The only instructions which are given Pacific Fruit Express Company by the Union Pacific Railroad Company in the performance of the Heater Protective Service (the type of work in which Moleton was engaged when injured) are switch lists whereby the orders of the shipper relating to the character of the service desired are transmitted. (R. 226, 227.)

Under these circumstances, to contend that Moleton was an employe of the Union Pacific Railroad Company is so

obviously a strained interpretation of the words "employee" and "employed" as to plainly conflict with the principle laid down in the *Robinson* case, *supra*.

In the recent case of *Gaulden v. Southern Pacific Co.* the identical proposition now urged by plaintiff was presented to the federal courts. In that case Gaulden was employed by the same Pacific Fruit Express Company with the same kind of job as Moleton. He was injured at Bakersfield, California while engaged as an iceman unloading ice from a refrigerator car belonging to the Express Company. The ice was stored later to be used in interstate trains. Suit was brought against the Express Company and against the Southern Pacific Railroad on the theories now espoused by the plaintiff herein. The District Court resolved this question against the plaintiff in a written opinion, 78 Fed. Supp. 651. The United States Circuit Court of Appeals of the Ninth Circuit affirmed this result in the following language:

"The judgment is affirmed on the grounds and for the reasons stated in the opinion of the trial court, 78 Fed. Supp. 651."

The Circuit Court opinion is to be found in 174 Fed. (2) 1022. Counsel for the plaintiff in their brief state that the Circuit Court decision is without opinion (Plaintiff's Brief p. 47). The fact appears to be that the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals adopted the opinion of the federal trial court so that the trial court opinion is now the opinion of the Circuit Court of Appeals. This case stands squarely for the proposition that an employe of the express company, such as Moleton, is not an employe of a railroad carrier. This holding is

unmistakable in view of the following language used by the trial court and adopted by the Circuit Court of Appeals:

“The terms of the Protective Service contract as well as the manner of its performance indubitably constitute the parties independent contractors. The Pacific Fruit Express Company performed with its own employees at its own expense. No right of control over the manner and means of performance was reserved to the railroads. To be sure certain conditions of performance and means of cooperation and assistance are specified in the contract but these provisions, directed to the successful accomplishment of the contract’s broad objective, do not invest the railroads with control of the method of performance. Cases such as *Pennsylvania Railroad Co. v. Roth*, 163 Fed. (2) 161, in which the railroad company employed a contractor to operate one of its railroad yards are not apropos for there is absent here that substantial degree of control over the manner and means of performance as was present in *Pennsylvania Railroad Co. v. Roth* and like cases.

“The remedial and humanitarian purposes of the Employers Liability Act in no way impel an interpretation of the contract in favor of an employment or agency relationship.”

The essential proposition now urged by plaintiff to the effect that the express company is nothing more than an agent of the railroad company at Laramie, Wyoming, so that its employes are in fact employes of the railroad company, was thus clearly rejected by the most recent opinion dealing with the matter in the federal courts.

It is true that the court in the Gaulden case had another basis upon which it could have decided that action in that

at the time of the accident it was impossible to determine the final destination of the ice being unloaded. In view of the fact that carriers other than the Southern Pacific operated in the Bakersfield yards it became impossible to state that Gaulden was injured while employed in the service of any particular master's master. This is the distinction which the plaintiff attempts to rely upon in the case at bar; but the federal courts took occasion in the Gaulden case to consider the contention now urged by plaintiff as well and the decision is so plainly a determination of the issue now raised on this appeal that the effect of that opinion should be controlling in this case.

The case of *Reynolds v. Addison Miller Co.*, 143 Wash. 271, 255 P. 110, is another ruling squarely in point and squarely overruling the contentions now urged by the plaintiff. In that case the Addison Miller Company and a railroad company had made a contract whereby the railroad leased to the Miller Company an icehouse and icing equipment. The Miller Company agreed to manufacture, sell and deliver in the bunkers of refrigerator cars which the railroad might set out at the icing platform, all ice that was required for use by the railroad. The railroad company had the right to inspect the work performed by the Miller Company. The plaintiff was injured while engaged in icing a car for the railroad company. Reynolds sued the Miller Company and the Railroad Company for his injuries, basing his complaint on the theory that his cause of action was governed by the Federal Employers' Liability Act. It is to be noted that in this case there could be no contention that the opinion



is based upon any uncertainty as to which carrier would receive the benefit of the services of the employe of the icing company. In the course of its opinion the Supreme Court of Washington said:

“The question then first for consideration under this act is whether at the time of the respondent’s injury he was an employee of a common carrier by railroad. To answer this question it is necessary to determine the effect of the contract between the Addison Miller Company and the Northern Pacific Railway Company. Under the authorities that contract was valid and constituted the Addison Miller Company an independent contractor, and its employees would not be employees of the Railway Company engaged in interstate commerce.”

The court went on to cite the opinions of the Supreme Court of the United States, commencing with the *Robinson* case, *supra*, and determined that the plaintiff was not an employe of the railroad company. It then took occasion to refer to a previous opinion which it had written holding that a railway company which had employed a construction company to do particular work made all the employes of the construction company employes of the railway company within the meaning of the Federal Employers’ Liability Act. The Washington Supreme Court specifically held that this opinion had been written without proper consideration and that there was no proper legal basis for any such holding.

The two cases cited above dealing with the Pacific Fruit Express Company and another company whose business was substantially identical thereto stem from opinions of the Supreme Court of the United States construing similar sit-

uations in other industries closely connected with railroad operations. The first such decision by the Supreme Court of the United States was handed down in the case of *Robinson v. Baltimore & Ohio Railroad Company*, supra. In that case the plaintiff was a pullman porter on a car which was being hauled by the defendant railroad company. He sued for injuries sustained as a result of a collision which, it was alleged, was occasioned by the negligence of the Railroad Company. The defendant introduced in evidence a contract between the plaintiff and the Pullman Company by which the plaintiff released all railroad corporations over whose line the cars of the Pullman Company might be operated from all claims whatsoever arising out of personal injury or death. The plaintiff contended that this contract was invalid and therefore inadmissible as in violation of the section of the Federal Employers' Liability Act which prohibited contracts or devices to exempt carriers from liability created by the Act. It therefore became necessary for the Supreme Court of the United States to determine whether or not a pullman porter, nominally employed by the Pullman Company, was within the coverage of the Act. After reviewing the facts of the relationship between the railroad company and the Pullman Company, Mr. Justice Hughes, speaking for the court, indicated that the words "employee" and "employed" contained in the statute were used in their natural sense, as heretofore stated. He further pointed out that it was well known that there were on interstate trains many persons engaged in various services for masters other than the railroad company operating the train. He stated that Congress, though familiar with this situation, did not

use any expression which could appropriately be taken to indicate a purpose to include such persons within the coverage of the Act. The Supreme Court unanimously concluded that the plaintiff was not an employe of the Railroad Company within the meaning of the Federal Employers' Liability Act.

Counsel for the plaintiff have asserted that the decision of the District Court in the case at bar makes it possible for railroad companies to discharge all the various jobs necessary to the operation of trains through other corporations, thus eliminating all employes from the coverage of the federal statute. The fact is that certain work occasioned by the operation of railroad trains has historically been performed by the railroad companies and other jobs incidental to the operation of these trains have been performed by other industries and companies. The Pullman Company is one example of an industry affiliated with the operation of railroad trains which historically has been handled by a separate company whose employes are held to be outside the coverage of the Federal Employers' Liability Act. We are all familiar with the functions which pullman porters perform in the operation of a passenger train. Plaintiff suggests that Moleton was performing work which was the work of the railroad company so that he was, in fact, the employe of the railroad company. Can it fairly be said that the work performed by a pullman porter is less the work of the railroad company hauling the train on which he is in service than was the work performed by Moleton for the Pacific Fruit Express Company in the Laramie yards? It is equally true as to each of these fact situations that the

work performed by a pullman porter or the work performed by Moleton is essential to the operation of interstate trains. But the fact remains that in each instance this work is performed by a separate business organization distinct from the railroad company and that the work is, in fact, done for such separate business organization. The reason for this historical separation of strict railroading from supplemental services, however necessary the work in connection with such supplemental services may be, is unimportant. The distinction exists, has been recognized by the Supreme Court of the United States, and, as will be pointed out, has been approved by Congress.

Following the Robinson case the Supreme Court of the United States was called upon to consider the matter more fully in the case of *Chicago, Rock Island & Pacific Ry. Co. v. Bond, Administrator of Turner*, 240 U. S. 449, 36 Sup. Ct. 403, 60 L. Ed. 735. In that case the deceased, William L. Turner, was killed while unloading coal to be used by the defendant railroad company at Enid, Oklahoma. His administrator brought suit against the railroad company alleging that his death was caused by the negligence of the railroad company and attempting to invoke the benefits of the Federal Employers' Liability Act. It appeared that Turner had performed work for the railroad company under a contract requiring him to place all coal required by the company in coal chutes so that the same could be discharged into the engines of the railroad. He had other work consisting of breaking the coal, unloading wood from cars to storage piles, loading cinders from the right of way of the railroad company to cars at points designated by the railroad company,

and unloading sand from cars furnished by the railroad company at points designated by it. The contract required considerable direction and instruction to Turner by agents of the railroad company. The court in that case held Turner to be an independent contractor as distinguished from an employe of the railroad company, thus eliminating the Federal Employers' Liability Act from the case. Mr. Justice McKenna, speaking for the court, used the following language in making such determination:

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